
Cabinet 
18 March 2015 

 
 

 

Published 10 March 2015 

Agenda  for meeting of the Cabinet to be held at 6.00 
pm on Wednesday, 18 March 2015 in the Town Hall, 
Eastbourne 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend and listen to the discussion of 

items in the “open” part of the meeting.  Please see notes at end of agenda 

concerning public rights to speak and ask questions. 

 

 

 

 

The Cabinet meets in the Court Room of the Town Hall which is located 

on the ground floor.  Entrance is via the main door or access ramp at 

the front of the Town Hall.  Parking bays for blue badge holders are 

available in front of the Town Hall and in the car park at the rear of 
the Town Hall. 

 
 

 

 

An induction loop operates to enhance sound for deaf people who use 

a hearing aid or loop listener. 

 

If you require further information or assistance please contact the 

Local Democracy team – contact details at end of this agenda. 
 

This agenda and accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in 
PDF format which means you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe 

Acrobat Reader. 

 

Please ask if you would like this agenda and/or any of the reports in an 
alternative format.  

 
 
Members of the Cabinet: 
 
Councillor David Tutt (Leader and Chairman of Cabinet): Responsibilities aligned 
with Chief Executive and including the Community Strategy, Local Strategic 
Partnership, the Corporate Plan and economic development. 
Councillor Gill Mattock (Deputy Leader and Deputy Chairman of Cabinet): Financial 
services including accountancy, audit, purchasing and payments. 
Councillor Margaret Bannister:  Direct assistance services including revenues and 
benefits, housing and community development, bereavement services and the Crime 
Reduction Partnership. 
Councillor Carolyn Heaps: Tourism and leisure services. 
Councillor Troy Tester: Core support and strategic services. 
Councillor Steve Wallis: Place services including cleansing and recycling, parks and 
downland, engineering, building and development control, planning policy and 
strategy, environmental health and licensing. 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 
 

 
[KD] against an item indicates that the matter involves a Key Decision and that the 
item has been listed in the Council’s Forward Plan for at least 28 clear days. 
 
[BPF] against an item indicates that the matter is part of the Council's Budget and 
Policy Framework and as such will require the approval of the Full Council.  
 
Publication of this agenda also constitutes notice (or confirmation that such notice 
has previously been given) to the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee and members 
of the public as appropriate: 
 
(1) Under regulation 10(3) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 in respect of any 
key decision not included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions within 28 
days of this meeting.  Such items (if any) are marked [KDGE] and the reasons why 
compliance with regulation 9 (publicity in connection with key decisions) was 
impracticable are given. 
 

(2) Under regulation 5(4) of the above mentioned regulations that certain matters 
listed on this agenda (if any) may need to be considered in private.  (This notice is 
given further to the earlier notice given under regulation 5(2).  The reasons for 
private consideration are given at the relevant item, together with details of 
representations received (if any) about why the meeting should be open to the 
public. 
 
 

1 Minutes of meeting held on 4 February 2015.   
 

 Previously circulated. 
 

2 Apologies for absence.   
 

3 Declarations of interests by members.   
 

 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs) by members as 
required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as 
required by the Code of Conduct and regulation 12(2)(d) of the 2012 Access 
to Information Regulations.  (Please see note at end of agenda). 
 

4 Questions by members of the public.   
 

 On matters not already included on the agenda and for which prior notice 
has been given (total time allowed 15 minutes).   
 

5 Urgent items of business.   
 

 The Chairman to notify the Cabinet of any items of urgent business to be 
added to the agenda. 
 

6 Right to address the meeting/order of business.   
 



3 

 

Page 3 
 

 The Chairman to report any requests received to address the Cabinet from a 
member of the public or from a Councillor in respect of an item listed below 
and to invite the Cabinet to consider taking such items at the 
commencement of the meeting.  
 

7 Devonshire Park project (KD).  (Pages 1 - 32) 
 

 Joint report of Senior Head of Regeneration, Planning and Assets and Senior 
Head of Tourism and Enterprise. 
Cabinet lead member: Councillor Carolyn Heaps. 
 

8 Write-off of irrecoverable debts.  (Pages 33 - 34) 
 

 Report of Deputy Chief Executive. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Gill Mattock. 
 
See 10 below as to confidential addendum. 
 

9 Exclusion of the public.   
 

 The Chief Executive considers that discussion of the following item is likely 
to disclose exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and may therefore need to take place in private 
session.  The exempt information reason is shown beneath the item listed 
below.  Furthermore, in relation to paragraph 10 of Schedule 12A, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. (The requisite notices 
having been given under regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012.) 
 
(Note: Exempt papers are printed on pink paper). 
 

10 Write-off of irrecoverable debts.  (Pages 35 - 36) 
 

 Confidential addendum to report of Deputy Chief Executive. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Gill Mattock. 
 
Exempt information reason 3 - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information). 
 

 
Inspection of background papers – Please see contact details listed in each 
report. 
 
Public right of address – Requests by members of the public to speak on a 
matter which is listed in this agenda must be received in writing by no later than 
12 Noon, 2 working days before the meeting (e.g. if the meeting is on a 
Wednesday, received by 12 Noon on the Monday before).  The request should be 
made to Local Democracy at the address listed below.  The request may be made 
by, letter, fax, or electronic mail.  For further details on the rules about speaking 



Page 4 
 

at meetings or for asking a question on a matter not listed on the agenda please 
contact Local Democracy. 
 
Public questions – Members of the public may ask a question on a matter which 
is not on the agenda.  Questions should be made in writing and by the same 
deadline as for the right of address above.  There are rules on the matters on 
which questions can be asked. Please ask Local Democracy for further information  
 
Councillor right of address - Councillors wishing to address the meeting who 
are not members of the Cabinet must notify the Chairman in advance (and no 
later than the immediately prior to the start of the meeting). 
 
Disclosure of interests - Members should declare their interest in a matter at 
the beginning of the meeting, and again, at the point at which that agenda item is 
introduced.   
 
Members must declare the existence and nature of any interest. 
 
In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not 
registered (nor the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the 
interest must be reported to the meeting by the member and subsequently 
notified in writing to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days.  
 
If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room 
when the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation). 
 
Implementation of decisions - Implementation of any key decision will take 
place after 5 working days from the date notice is given of the Cabinet's decision 
(normally on the day following the meeting) unless subject to "call-in".  
Exceptions to this requirement are allowed when the decision is urgent. 
 
Further information – The Forward Plan of Key Decisions, Councillor contact 
details, committee membership lists and other related information are available 
from Local Democracy.  To receive regular e-mails alerting you to the publication 
of Cabinet agendas (or other meeting agendas) please send an e-mail to: 
localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
You can view the Forward Plan of Key Decisions at 
http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/council/meetings/ 
 
Local Democracy, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW 
Tel (01323) 415022/415021/415023          Fax (01323) 410322  
Text Relay: 18001 01323 410000   E Mail: localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
For general Council enquiries, please telephone (01323) 410000 
E-mail  enquiries@eastbourne.gov.uk   Website at  www.eastbourne.gov.uk 
 



 

Page 1 of 31 

  
Body: Cabinet 

 
Date: 18 March 2015 

 
Subject: Devonshire Park Project 

 
Report of: Senior Head of Regeneration, Planning and Assets, and 

Senior Head of Tourism and Enterprise 
 

Ward(s) Meads 

Purpose To consider the proposal for the future development of 
Devonshire Park to create a cultural destination. 
 

Decision type: Key Decision  
 

Recommendation: Cabinet is recommended to:  
 
a) Confirm support for the emerging Devonshire Park 

Scheme as presented in this report; 
 

b) Give delegated authority to the Senior Head of 
Regeneration, Planning and Assets in consultation with the 
Devonshire Park Project Board, to progress the project to 
obtain planning permission (RIBA Stage 3) and make 
submissions to funding bodies to attract financial support 
for the scheme; 

 
c) Confirm the appointment of the existing Multi-Disciplinary 

Design Team to carry out the necessary work to obtain 
planning permission for the project. 

 
d) Allocate  £1.425m in the capital programme in order to 

carry out all the necessary work to stage 3 and the 
preliminary elements of stage 4 necessary to maintain 
momentum; 

 
e) Earmark £1m of the Council’s revenue reserves in order to 

support the scheme beyond Stage 3. 
 

Contact: Jefferson Collard, Senior Head of Regeneration, Planning and 
Assets. Tel 01323 415240   jeff.collard@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

 

1.0 Vision and Objectives 
  

1.1 The Council has ambitious plans to bring about the transformation of the 
town and these visions are embedded in the Corporate Plan. Whether this is 
facilitating the regeneration of the town centre by encouraging the private 
sector to invest £90million in the extension of the Arndale Centre, or 

Agenda Item 7

Page 1



Page 2 of 31 

providing new innovative business space at Sovereign Harbour to expand 
the town’s skill base, the Council is at the heart of ensuring delivery of the 
some of the largest regeneration projects the town has recently seen. The 
Devonshire Park project is another ambitious scheme to see the 
regeneration of the town’s cultural quarter. Since the start of the review of 
the Devonshire Park Complex there has been a clear vision to create a 
cultural destination and for it to be one of the most talked about locations in 
the South East.  

 

1.2 To achieve this the Council set out to fulfil a number of aims:- 
 

• Deal with all the necessary essential repairs to those buildings that 
are being retained in the new development  - the stand still cost of 
this work has been estimated at some £7.5m; 

• Understand the significance of the three listed buildings and carry out 
sensitive renovations; 

• Upgrade the facilities in the buildings to enable them to be better and 
more fully used; 

• Preserve the future of the international tennis tournament; 
• Create better conference facilities; 
• Create a new entrance to ‘Welcome’ the visitors and users and make 

the site more inclusive; 
• Create significant new public realm to provide an appropriate civic 

setting for the new complex; 
• Develop a more sustainable future for the site, reducing subsidy and 

increasing income. 
 

1.3 This report builds on previous work and drives forward the programme by 
seeking delegated authority to progress the scheme to planning permission 
(RIBA Stage 3), make submissions to major funding bodies for financial  
support, confirm the retention of the existing consultancy team and approve 
expenditure of up to £1,425,000 to fund the necessary work between now 
and the next Cabinet report expected to be in the coming autumn. 

 

2.0  Approach 
 

2.1 To achieve the Vision and Objectives the Council adopted a structured 
approach, involving detailed analysis of the site’s heritage, access and 
sustainability issues, design options and the business case for change. In 
parallel with this strategic approach, a decision was made to proceed with 
the essential repairs to the exterior of the Congress Theatre as this would 
not affect the strategic approach. The replacement of the façade to the 
Congress Theatre will be completed and the scaffolding removed in April 
ready for the summer season. 

 
2.2  This approach has been approved by members in a series of Cabinet 

reports:- 

• 20 October 2010 – this report triggered by the failure of the concrete 
cladding of the Congress Theatre led the Council to commission a 
strategic review of options for the future of the Devonshire Park 

Page 2



Page 3 of 31 

Complex. 

• 14 December 2011 – the strategic review referred to above, led to the 
appointment of Marks Barfield architects. The architects proposed a 
number of options for the regeneration of the site and the council 
opted for the creation of a new “front door” to the site (now known as 
the Welcome Building) and a sensitive restoration and repurpose of 
the other buildings and the wider site. 

• 12 December 2012 – following this approval, Marks Barfield, together 
with business planning consultants David Clarke Associates, were 
commissioned to develop a Masterplan which respects the heritage of 
the site and sets out how the financial performance could be improved 
through increased income and reduced running costs. The plan also 
highlights initial options for the future governance of the site. Based 
on this work the council agreed to progress the scheme to RIBA Stage 
C (now known as Stage 2). 

• 16 July 2014 – following the appointment of Focus Consultants as 
external project managers Cabinet approved a revised budget of 
£950,000 to fund the full architectural and specialist advisor team 
needed to progress the project to RIBA Stage 2. Subsequent to the 
Cabinet, Levitt Bernstein, heritage architects, and a full team of 
building and theatre specialists were appointed. In addition the council 
has retained David Clarke Associates to continue developing the 
business plan and future governance models and employed Huntley 
Cartwright as quantity surveyors to manage costs. 

 
3.0 Business Case  

 

3.1 Work undertaken 
 
The last review of the business case for investment in Devonshire Park was 
undertaken in summer 2013. In the new stage of work from autumn 2014, 
the business case has been revisited in detail, including: 
 
• Work with the design team to ensure the business case and future 

forecasts of business have informed, and now reflect, the new design 
scheme for the site; 

• Working in detail with the team at Devonshire Park to ensure that the 
long term forecast for business reflects current practice;  

• Full review of catering and conference markets in light of national and 
regional trends and comparators/competition for Devonshire Park; 

• Full, detailed, revised forecasting of all business and cost and income 
projections for the renewed site. 

 
The new scheme provides an elegant and effective basis for confidence that 
significant improvement in the financial operation of the site and its 
economic benefit to the town can be achieved. 
 
Financial sustainability will be very significantly improved by the scheme and 
substantial new economic impact to the town and regional economy will be 
generated.  

Page 3



Page 4 of 31 

 
The developing scheme has been tested against the core business case 
drivers at each stage to ensure the optimum priorities are set.  These drivers 
are outlined below in the order of their importance to the business case.  
   
Key financial drivers 

1. Conference/events – transform performance in the ‘distinctive venue’ 
market; 

2. Catering & visitor spends – essential quality offer & significant income 
driver;  

3. Theatre/live entertainment business – working main venues harder;  
4. An accessible visible, quality, visitor attraction, efficiently operable.  

 
Financial benefits to the town other than through the Devonshire 
Park account  

5. Tennis – important to the economy and reputation of the town; 
6. Driving the local hospitality economy through conference and event 

business; 
7. Tourism – driving prosperity and general job creation. 

 

3.2 Improvements in business and viability 
 
There will be significant improvement in trade in the core business of arts 
and entertainment provision as well as in the conference and catering. The 
important role of the site in hosting the international tennis tournament will 
be safeguarded. 
 
Central to the viability of the site and its economic value to the town, there 
will be substantially increased conference business where we forecast that 
once renewed, the site will host in the order of 350 events a year of varying 
sizes. While many will continue to be in the association and charity sector, 
financial yields will rise and new business can be expected in the higher 
value corporate sector. In total we expect conference income in the order of 
£1.7m per annum, of which over £500k will be income through hiring the 
venue. 
 
Catering incomes will improve given the new provision of two very attractive 
public catering spaces and the potential for increased food and beverage 
sales to conference organizers. In total we anticipate catering turnover in 
the order of £1.44m and net receipts/savings after all costs of £265k per 
annum. 
 

3.3 Overall financial impact 
 
The analysis shows that the site will move to a much more viable basis of 
operation on completion of the works. From a current subsidy in the order of 
£1.17m per annum, we anticipate that, after new investments in service to 
conferences and in managing and marketing the site, the new scheme will 
move Devonshire Park to a position of small residual deficit year on year – 
an overall improvement over the current basis in the order of £815,000 per 
annum. Further savings in central costs and other areas may follow from the 

Page 4



Page 5 of 31 

review of governance and management at the next stage and move 
Devonshire Park to modest surplus. (see Appendix 1 for a summary of the 
Business Case). 
 

3.4 Build-up of income, risk and sensitivity 
 
There are a number of challenges to overcome in the business model, but 
these were significantly addressed in this stage. We had previously been 
concerned about the potential disruption to activity and income during the 
works. This remains a significant challenge but the proposed construction 
plan is driven by the need to maintain business as far as is possible, and 
does so very effectively. We also believe that income can build up to the 
level set out above relatively quickly once works are complete. Whilst there 
are risks in growing the business, each forecast for new business is based in 
detailed market appraisal and is kept to relatively modest levels. Overall the 
sensitivity of the plan to change is relatively modest for a scheme of this 
size. 
 
There are further potential savings in costs to the Council that may be 
generated by the full review of the options for future management and for 
commercial partnership, which will be undertaken in the next work stage.  
 

3.5 Next steps 
 
In the next stage of work, the business plan for the period of the works and 
for the re-launch of the site will be finalised, including resolution of options 
for governance and management. 
 

4.0 Design Team Appointment 
 

4.1 As explained in previous Cabinet reports, the Multi-Disciplinary Design Team 
was appointed in August 2014 in accordance with OJEU procurement 
regulations. The Lead Architect is Levitt Bernstein who is directly supported 
by various specialists for the duration of the project until 2020.  It is 
noteworthy that a long term appointment is considered expedient to ensure 
a consistent approach and long-term continuity. 
  

4.2 In addition to the design team, Quantity Surveyors, Huntley Cartwright, 
have also been appointed directly reporting to the Council to monitor project 
costs. 
   

4.3 In November 2014, David Clark Associates, Business Planning Consultants 
(including conference, catering and retail specialists) and Neill Woodger 
Associates, Theatre Planners and Acousticians were appointed by the Council 
to support the design team. 
  

4.4 The overall Project Manager and CDM coordinator for the Project is Focus 
Consulting who report directly to the Council. 
  

4.5 See Appendix 2 for details of the Multi-Disciplinary Design Team and other 
specialists. 
  

Page 5



Page 6 of 31 

5.0 Project Budget  
 

5.1 As previously reported the projected cost for the Masterplan in 2012 was 
£35m. In the interim the construction market has experienced a substantial 
upturn and construction inflation levels have risen from 1–2% to 5–6% year 
on year. Therefore applying inflation to the Masterplan estimate results in a 
scheme approximately £8m above the £35m budget. 
 

5.2 The new design team have reviewed the brief and design response to ensure 
the project is delivering efficiently and providing value for money. This 
process included expanding the project to price every option available before 
filtering down to the core brief, that is, the items most critical to delivering 
the business case drivers and the qualitative aspirations of the brief. 
 
As a result, the new scheme still delivers the Masterplan objectives but in a 
more sensitive and effective manner.  The costs associated with this have 
been thoroughly analysed and considered and this has resulted in a scheme 
deliverable to a budget of £40- £42 million including inflation, fees and a 
reasonable contingency. Further detailed work during Stage 3 will refine this 
estimate as risks are reduced with a more defined scheme. 
 

5.3 The following assumptions have been made in coming to the estimated cost: 
  

1. 5.25% inflation per year. 
2. Contingency of 10% is allowed taking into account the risk register. 
3. Costs are based on concept designs which are relatively high level. As 

the design develops so too will the Cost Plan to provide more accurate 
and market tested costings. 
 

5.4 This report is seeking commitment of £1.425m which comprises professional 
team fees and associated costs to complete Stage 3 – Developed Design of 
the project including preparation and submission of Planning Application and 
Listed Building Consents. It also includes an element of "at risk" working to 
continue into Stage 4 – Technical Design for the Devonshire Park Theatre 
and International Tennis Centre (ITC) refurbishment work whilst planning is 
determined. This is necessary to maintain programme and minimise the 
impact of inflation.  The level of risk is low for both these elements as 
planning permission will not be required for the ITC works and, whilst 
planning and listed building consent are required for the works to the 
Devonshire Park Theatre, the works are repair and restoration  and therefore 
non-contentious and likely to secure permission. 
 

6.0 Constraints  
 

6.1 This section highlights the main constraints for the site that the design team 
have been dealing with and which in summary are:- 

• The need for government consent to alter the 3 listed buildings; 
• The limitations on the site to accommodate the future needs of the 

LTA; 
• The accessibility of the site and connectivity between the buildings; 
• The need to carry out work at risk to ensure a tight construction 

programme. 

Page 6



Page 7 of 31 

 
6.2 There are 3 listed buildings on the site, the Congress Theatre (Grade 2* 

Listed) and the Winter Garden and Devonshire Park Theatre (both Grade 2 
Listed). These buildings have long term defects which will require 
sympathetic restoration requiring English Heritage approval and Listed 
Building Consent, as the works will involve modifications and in some cases 
material replacement (similar to the Congress façade restoration, as 
opposed to simple ‘like for like’ repairs). Additionally, as these buildings are 
owned by The Council, the Listed Building Consent will require approval by 
the Department of Communities and Local Government. 
 

6.3 A key stakeholder in the in the project is the Lawn Tennis Association (LTA). 
The project will need to deliver significant improvements to the tennis court 
layout to accommodate increased court sizes together with a new show 
court and the LTA will also be keen to see significant improvements to the 
player facilities. The increase in court size is to allow for greater space 
behind the ‘backline’ as players serve faster. The impact of this will be to 
reduce the available space on the lawn area for new construction which has 
been achieved mainly by the demolition of the ‘temporary’ Devonshire Park 
Halls and re-accommodating the lost space in the semi basement new 
Welcome Building. It is also important that as much of the current parking 
space in College Road is retained which has also reduced the available space 
for new courts. A new show court is required to provide more seating for the 
top matches. Improvements in player facilities are planned, both to future-
proof the tournament and reduce the LTA’s annual tournament revenue 
costs by reducing the need for creating expensive temporary facilities.  
 

6.4 The buildings, in particular the Theatres, as they are currently arranged, 
present significant challenges for disabled access and the topography of the 
site presents design challenges in terms of the varying levels throughout the 
site which hinders connectivity between buildings. This challenge is being 
addressed in the new scheme. 
 

6.5 The construction phase of the project is scheduled to begin in April 2016 and 
will be completed in early 2020. During this period it will be necessary to 
shut down both the Congress and Winter Garden at the same time for a 
period of approximately 6 months from January to June 2018.  It will also 
require a break in the show programme which will have to be adjusted 
accordingly. Notwithstanding, the Devonshire Park Theatre programme 
should not be affected during this period and the tennis tournament will go 
ahead throughout the construction phase. Importantly the Christmas 
pantomime will not be affected by this programme. 
 

7.0 Developing the Scheme  
 

7.1 In developing the scheme the Multi Disciplinary Design Team ensured that 
the emerging design took into account the business plan. This is critical as 
the scheme must reduce operational costs while increase income streams to 
ensure it is viable. This involved considering the implications for the business 
case as each design solution was considered. This process helped the design 
team to focus on the critical elements that met the key objectives.  The 
emerging proposals where then shared with operational managers, key 

Page 7



Page 8 of 31 

commercial partners, English Heritage and a wide range of stakeholders to 
identify and then evaluate a range of options. 
 

7.2 This resulted in some key decisions about what was to be included in the 
design of the proposed scheme, and what would not be pursued. For 
example the emerging scheme is not proposing an underground car park. 
However one of the key objectives was to ensure easy access for users of 
the new conference space, particularly for large exhibitions, so the two new 
spaces in the Welcome Building have ground level vehicular access from the 
rear. The Winter Garden already has level access for vehicles and together 
with the new spaces, makes Devonshire Park very attractive for conference 
and exhibition users. 
 

8.0 Consultation 
 

8.1 The current project has been guided by regular meetings of the cross party 
member led Devonshire Park Project Board. The membership of the Project 
Board and its remit can be found in Appendix 3. 
 

8.2 The Project Board has been assisted by a Partnership Group, who represent 
a range of organisations and groups that have an interest in the site and its 
function. For example the Chamber of Commerce are represented because 
of the economic benefit of the site to the town; the Eastbourne Hospitality 
Association is represented as the site is a significant draw for the visitors to 
the town; the Lawn Tennis Association is represented for obvious reasons. 
Some of the attendees are consultees on planning applications, such English 
Heritage and the Theatres Trust. A full list of the membership of the 
Partnership Group is in Appendix 3 together with their remit. 
 

8.3 As the scheme developed these two groups were kept informed and gave 
feedback on the emerging proposals. The information was further enhanced 
with regular newsletters for wider circulation as well as updates on a 
dedicated area of the Council’s website. 
 

8.4 Extensive consultation has also been carried out with the onsite operational 
teams. This was important to ensure practical solutions to current issues and 
inefficiencies were being developed alongside the emerging design. Besides 
operational managers being part of the Partnership Group, they had direct 
access on a one to one basis to the design team through detailed working 
groups.  
 

8.5 The format of this arrangement has worked well as a way to scrutinise the 
project and to keep all the key people informed of progress. Consequently 
the current established arrangements are discussed further elsewhere in this 
report as the governance model to take the project to the next stage. 
 

9.0 The Design Solution 
 

9.1 Preferred Design 
This section summarises the design proposals for Devonshire Park at 
completion of RIBA Stage 2: Concept Design. Stage 3 will develop the 
design in response to stakeholder feedback in preparation for an application 

Page 8



Page 9 of 31 

for full planning and listed building consent in the late summer of 2015. 
Extensive analysis, options appraisals, consultation with key stakeholders 
and discussions with the commissioning and building-user clients underpin 
the proposed work. The next paragraphs give a brief outline the scheme as 
proposed for Stage 2 and Appendix 4 contains the concept drawings of the 
proposal. 
 

9.2 Design & Heritage Overview 
A key element of the brief has been to invest primarily in improving the 
historic buildings and to add new facilities only where these are essential for 
new and increased income. There is no doubt that the project will also 
deliver significant benefits for local people, local businesses and visitors 
alike. 
 

9.3 Landscape/Public Realm 
The proposed plaza offers a new high quality public realm that aims to 
integrate the site with the surrounding context and maximise the project’s 
contribution to the wider regeneration of Eastbourne.  
 

9.4 Congress Theatre 
Proposals for the 1963 Grade II* listed Congress Theatre seek to improve its 
setting, complete its exterior restoration, restore the original interior design, 
improve accessibility, and improve comfort and facilities for audiences and 
performers. The addition of cooling is proposed for the auditorium. 
 

9.5 Winter Garden 
Originally built in 1874 for uses including roller skating and concerts, 
proposals for the Grade II listed Winter Garden seek to enhance the historic 
character of its exterior and interior, improve accessibility throughout, 
reduce overheating in the venues, improve facilities for all users and 
increase revenue generation.  
 

9.6 Welcome Building 
The Welcome Building is a new building located on the site of the Congress 
Banqueting Suite, which will be demolished as it is considered to have low 
heritage significance. The preferred design proposals include two new large 
conference spaces (replacing the Devonshire Park Halls) set partly below 
ground and under a highly glazed pavilion accommodating central box office, 
coffee/wine bar and breakout/hospitality space. 
  
Conceptually, the Welcome Building’s design interweaves the rectilinearity of 
the Congress Theatre with the elegance and engineering rational of the 
Winter Garden thereby lending a unique identity to the new building that is 
sympathetic to both historic buildings. 
 

9.7 Devonshire Park Theatre 
This project intends to complete the essential repairs and back-log 
maintenance in order to safeguard this Grade II listed playhouse, and 
improve access arrangements for disabled people. It is the intention that 
works to the theatre will be an early phase in the programme. 
 

9.8 Racquet Court 

Page 9



Page 10 of 31 

Owing to its location the Racquet Court is not well integrated with the other 
venues. It is therefore proposed, for the time being, to continue its use as 
essential support and storage space. It will be subject to essential repairs. 
 

9.9 Tennis 
The focus for change is on the provision of better playing and support 
facilities for the International Event (currently sponsored by Aegon). The 
preferred tennis field layout contains a new show court and increased 
footprints for individual match courts. There is reduction from 13 to 12 
courts for the International Event to enable existing parking provision to be 
maintained. However, additional court capability at Meads Lawn offers 
flexibility for major events.  
 

9.10 Catering 
The catering design proposes a single production kitchen serving 
dinners/banquets in the Floral Hall and Gold Room, a new café/bar serving 
‘light bites’ at The Congress Theatre entrance level, and various pantries to 
facilitate food service where required by the business case. Acceptable 
delivery routes have been mapped-out by the catering consultant in 
collaboration with the venue’s management team and architect. 
 

10.0 Programme and Phasing  
 

10.1 Programme Overview  
 

Milestones  Date  

Cabinet Meeting and Instruction to 
Proceed  

March 2015  

RIBA Stage 3 – Developed Design  April 2015 – December 2015  

RIBA Stage 4 – Technical Design  August 2015* – June 2016 

Production/ Tender Documentation 
/ Tender Action  

November 2015 – March 2017  

RIBA Stages 5-6 – Construction & 
Handover  

April 2016 – December 2019  

RIBA Stage 7 – In Use Study and 
Defects Liability  

Completes December 2020  

 
*This stage starts earlier than the end of Stage 3 in order to commence 
certain work phases (1 and 2.1) earlier in the programme - see para 10.2. 
 

10.2 It is planned to split the project into different phases.  This has been 
planned in order to ensure as much "business as usual" as possible and also 
minimise the impact of inflation. 

  
 Phase 0 Tennis Pavilion and ITC Construction Works 
 Phase 1   Devonshire Park Theatre 
 Phase 2.1   Office Building 

Page 10



Page 11 of 31 

 Phase 2.2   Welcome Building & Congress Theatre 
 Phase 3.1   Demolition of Devonshire Park Halls 
 Phase 3.2   Tennis Courts layout  
 Phase 4   Winter Gardens  
  
 In order to keep works progressing and maintain momentum on 
site, it is proposed to begin Phases 0, 1 and 2.1 to start on site in late 
Spring 2016. This necessitates an element of "at risk" working whilst the 
planning application is determined on these phases.  However, it is 
considered to be relatively low risk for these phases as Phases 0 and 2.1 do 
not require planning permission, Phase 1 will require consent however the 
works are non-contentious and will involve restoring and conserving the 
historic fabric.  Therefore no issues are anticipated securing planning and 
listed building consent for these works before they are due to start. 
 

10.3 The design team is aware of the impact of the works and the need where 
possible to retain ‘business as usual’. Considering the significant intervention 
on the site this key objective has largely been met over the first two years of 
works with minimal closures. However the programme does necessitate the 
need to have a ‘dark period’ for both the Winter Garden and The Congress 
Theatre at the same time between January and June 2018. This is necessary 
to enable their restoration and new equipment installation. This period does 
not affect the international tennis event and is sufficiently ahead to minimise 
the impact on bookings. 
  

11.0 Funding 
 

11.1 An outline Funding Strategy has been produced as part of the Stage 2 
application which sets out a range of funding streams (see background 
papers). Given the scale and costs  of the capital expenditure, officers have 
identified three funders to focus on: 
 

11.2 Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF):  
The HLF funds projects which produce a lasting difference for heritage and 
people. Applications are assessed through two staged process and dates for 
assessment are now available. The council would be looking to secure a 
decision by November 2015. 
 

11.3 Arts Council England 
Arts Council England (ACE) has a number of planned Strategic funding 
programmes for 2015-18. The Council believe it has a strong alignment with 
the ACE priorities.  
 

11.4. Local Economic Partnership 
Eastbourne is part of the South East LEP and has had recent success in 
securing funding for other infrastructure projects from this source. At 
present there are no calls for heritage/cultural regeneration capital scheme 
but we have commenced early discussions with the LEP about the project 
and will continue to play an active part in the partnership.  
 

11.5 Lawn Tennis Association 
As a key partner on the site, the Council and our project consultants have 

Page 11



Page 12 of 31 

worked proactively with the LTA. One of our drivers is to jointly secure the 
future of Eastbourne as an international tennis venue meeting international 
court standards. The Council believes this will add significant value to the 
tournament and will reduce the annual revenue pressures for the LTA.  
 

12.0 Procurement 
 

12.1 The Multi-Disciplinary Design Team has been procured for the full life of the 
project but with a break clause within the appointment to allow for the 
contract to be ended by the Council at any point without penalty. This 
enables consistency of team throughout whilst also ensuring there isn't 
undue commitment by the Council in the early stages of the project. 
 

12.2 Given the nature of the works, it is generally felt that the traditional 
tendering route is the most appropriate for the building works.  This entails 
full design resulting in the compilation of a schedule of works or Bill of 
Quantities, which is then used to tender. 
 
The benefits of this route are that it gives a fixed lump sum price with clear 
rates against which to value any variations and gives high quality with cost 
and programme certainty.  It does require sufficient time to fully design the 
scheme but this is considered beneficial when dealing with buildings of 
historic significance. 
 

12.3 Due to the estimated construction costs, the procurement will require an 
OJEU approach. The construction work will be phased due to the complexity, 
and the different and unique nature of each of the phases. The procurement 
will take account of this and approximately 88 weeks has been allowed in 
the programme, starting in August 2015, to undertake the entire 
procurement process, including the bills of quantity and detailed design.  
 

13.0 Risk 
 

13.1 A comprehensive risk matrix has been developed by The Council and Focus 
which has been captured in Covalent. The strategic risks for the project and 
their mitigation are summarised as follows:  

• Budget overrun; Cost Consultants Huntley Cartwright  have been 
appointed directly by the Council to estimate and monitor project 
costs for the duration of the project to ensure it aligns with the budget 
set by Cabinet.  

• Programme overruns; detailed work has been undertaken by the 
design team to develop the programme and a specific Phasing 
Working Group has been set up to oversee the process.  

• Business continuity; some interruption to business activity is 
required to undertake significant restoration and equipment 
installation, however a Working Group has been instigated to monitor 
this and introduce mitigation wherever possible.  

• Achieving Listed Building approval; English Heritage have been, 
and will continue to be, consulted on a continuous basis throughout 
the duration of the project to ensure they are fully cognisant of the 
design proposals and are also represented on the Partnership Group. 
The recently completed Conservation Management Plan will be used to 

Page 12



Page 13 of 31 

inform conservation work and, aside from some concerns, English 
Heritage has indicated that overall, the project will deliver positive 
heritage benefits. The listed buildings will also require ‘opening up’ at 
the earliest opportunity to understand the potential design issues 
which will need to be addressed    

• Future business assumptions; a detailed evaluation of the business 
case has been undertaken by a specialist consultant that confirms and 
supports the design principles of the project. The same specialist has 
also been commissioned, with additional support from Catering, 
Conference and Retail consultants, to continue to provide advice on 
the business planning aspect and future governance to ensure that 
optimum commerciality is achieved for the site.  
 

14.0 Governance 
 

14.1 As discussed elsewhere in the report, the governance framework set up to 
guide the development to RIBA Stage 2 has been road-tested and worked 
very well and the broad framework will be retained. However it was found 
useful in undertaking the work to supplement the structure with themed 
working groups where a more in depth analysis of the proposals could be 
undertaken. These groups worked directly with the Design Team and proved 
an efficient way to channel the operational manager’s views and ideas into 
the design process.  The recommended and amended governance structure 
diagram can be found at Appendix 5. 
 

15.0 Finance  
 

15.1 As part of the next phase of work on the business case, financing options 
will be developed. The effect on the Council’s finances has three elements: 
 

• The revenue cost of business disruption whilst construction is 
underway; 

• The cost of business development required in order to grow the 
business plan until it realises its potential; 

• The revenue cost of borrowing (interest and minimum Revenue 
Provision) to finance the capital required. 

 
15.2 The first two elements of this will require immediate revenue funding and 

therefore this report seeks to set aside £1m in order to act as a fund to 
facilitate the build phase and business development required before the 
Business Plan is achieved. This would also act as a hedge against the 
scheme not going forward beyond Stage 3, as costs accrued so far would  
not be associated with a future construction and become chargeable to 
revenue. 
 

15.3 The final element is the revenue cost of the construction following any 
grants, contributions or capital receipts. 
 
The business plan improvement of £815,000 could support borrowing in the 
region of £15-£20m depending on interest rates and the length of 
repayment. 
 

Page 13



Page 14 of 31 

In order to fund the difference between that total and the net scheme total 
the Council would have two choices: 
 

• To generate capital receipts 
• To borrow the residual amount 

 
Or a combination of the two. 
 

15.4 The Council is pursuing an ambitious target of an additional £600,000 per 
annum of growth in its capital financing budget in the lifetime of the current 
MTFS. Should all this be achieved then the Council could support the scheme 
up to a net total of £30 -£35m after contributions, using a long term MRP 
(60 years) at the current low interest rates. 
 
Should this growth not be achieved the Council will need to fund any gap 
using capital receipts or improved investment yield from capital receipts. 
 

15.5 Consequently at this concept stage of the project, there is an appropriate 
level of confidence in finding the funding for the emerging scheme valued at 
between £40-£42m. The sources of funding will be further informed and 
refined at a future Cabinet meeting later this year, when a further report will 
be presented before a decision is made by Full Council to commit to the 
significant bulk of the expenditure. 
 

16.0 Legal 
 

16.1 Procurement/contracts 
A detailed procurement strategy will be developed as a priority early in 
Stage 3. It is currently proposed that a ‘traditional’ approach via an OJEU 
process is adopted taking into account the New Procurement Regulations 
effective from 26th February 2015. 
 
The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 sets out the requirement that all 
contracting authorities consider before procuring services how what they 
may buy might improve the economic, social and environmental well-being 
of the area. As indicated in the last report to Cabinet, this project has been 
designed in such a way as to ensure that potential social benefits (defined in 
such a way as to ensure that there is no discrimination against bidders 
across the EU) will be considered at each stage of the project.    
  
State Aid 
In December 2013, Cabinet considered legal advice in relation to the 
Council’s proposed financial support to the Devonshire Park project and 
agreed European Commission notification was not required. This will be kept 
under review to ensure compliance with State Aid legislation. 
 
Property 
The site and buildings are owned by EBC with the exception of the 
Buccaneer PH and associated toilets for which lease arrangements are in 
place. No change is proposed to this in the scheme as proposed. 
 
Licenses/Agreements 

Page 14



Page 15 of 31 

The Towner is leased to the recently established Towner Trust for a period of 
30 years. In addition, there is an agreement for LTA to use Towner during 
the main tournament.  
 
There is also a 43 year User License between the Council and the LTA dating 
from 1997 to permit the LTA to use the site during Tournaments. 
 

17.0 Equality 
 

17.1 It is considered that this project will deliver substantial improvements to 
access throughout the site for visitors, performers and staff and will, 
therefore contribute significantly to the ‘disability’ protected group. A 
specialist Access consultant has been appointed to advise the design team 
for the duration of the project who will undertake a detailed evaluation of 
front of house, back stage facilities and layout and make appropriate 
recommendations for improvements to access, audio/visual aids, WC 
facilities, lighting/décor, signage, seating door automation etc.  
 

17.2 It is intended to undertake a formal Equalities Impact Analysis in the next 
stage of the design process.  
 

18.0 Conclusions 
 

18.1 In July 2014 Cabinet gave authority for officers to engage a Multi-
Disciplinary Design Team to take the Marks Barfield Masterplan to the next 
level of detail, known as RIBA Stage 2. That work has been completed and 
the conclusion is that the vision the Council has for the Devonshire Park site 
can be achieved within a cost envelope of approximately £40- £42million.  
 

18.2 Significant analysis has been undertaken of how the site can be developed 
and meets the objectives the Council has set for its future. This has included 
a forensic analysis of the business case to validate the savings to be 
achieved through efficiencies and the generation of new and increased 
income streams.  
 

18.3 An analysis of funding sources has shown that grants are available which 
might potentially assist with the funding of the scheme. Together with the 
Council’s ability to borrow using its savings from the medium term financial 
strategy, the conclusion is that the scheme is fundable. This Report seeks 
authority to take the scheme to the next stage of achieving planning 
permission only (RIBA Stage 3) by which time the financial position will be 
more certain. The Council will receive a further report after Stage 3 at which 
time it will be in a position to decide, on the balance of risks, whether to go 
forward and commission the development.  
 

 
Jefferson Collard 
Senior Head of Regeneration, Planning and Assets 
 
 
Background papers 
 

Page 15



Page 16 of 31 

The background papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 

• The minutes of the Cabinet meetings on:- 
• 20 October 2010 

• 14 December 2011 

• 12 December 2012 

• 16 July 2014 
• RIBA Stage 2 Report dated March 2015 by Levitt Bernstein 
• Business Case Report dated February 2015 by David Clarke Associates 
• Devonshire Park Funding Strategy dated January 2015 by Focus 

Consulting 
 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact 
officer listed above. 
 
Appendices 
 

1. Summary of the Business Case 
 

2. Multi Disciplinary Design Team Members 
 

3. Remit and Membership of the Project Board and Partnership Group 
 

4. Overview of the Stage 2 Concept Plans 
 

5. Governance Diagram 
 

 

Page 16



Page 17 of 31 

Appendix 1 – Summary of the Business Case 
 
 

Eastbourne Borough Council 
 
Devonshire Park – Business Case for Investment 
 
Summary of Stage 2 Report – February 2015 
 
Business planning and summary conclusions 

1. Eastbourne Borough Council commissioned us in November 2014 to review 
the business case for investment in the renewal of Devonshire Park alongside 
the emerging plans to RIBA Stage 2 being prepared by the multi-disciplinary 
design team led by architects Levitt Bernstein. 

 
2. Our team for this stage of work consisted of DCA (overall business plan and 
financial analysis, performing arts and general market appraisal), Venues 
Advisor who have carried out a renewed analysis and forecast of the 
conference and events market and Kendrick Hobbs who have similarly 
undertaken a renewed analysis of the catering opportunities on the site. 

 
3. The conclusion of our work endorses the level of ambition and vision with 
which the Council have approached the renewal of Devonshire Park.  

 
4. Although the buildings and environment of Devonshire Park are suffering from 
dilapidation and the inappropriateness of various incremental structures and 
facilities added over the years, the business at its core has very significant 
potential. 

 
5. There are few cultural sites that continue to claim more than 230,000 ticketed 
admissions to programme per annum and over 100,000 visits to exhibitions, 
other cultural activities and engagement projects, plus at least this number 
again attending tennis tournaments, conferences and events and generally 
visiting the site. 

 
6. In the economy of the town this is very significant. The Devonshire Park 
operation spends some £7.5m per annum and, even if only a proportion of 
this is spent in the local economy, Devonshire Park constitutes one of the 
larger purchasers of local services and supplies.  

 
7. Of this, almost £2m is spent in salaries and wages in the business we are 
considering as part of this work - the site is a significant employer offering 
stable and rewarding jobs in the local economy. 

 
8. It has been estimated that visitors to the Park have a direct effect in the 
town’s economy of over £7m per annum. The real effect may be much larger 
if one considers the value of national coverage of, and recognition for, the 
major tennis tournament.  

 
9. With a footfall of 400,000 visits a year the site has a strong business basis to 
build on. The challenge for the Council has been to develop a scheme that 

Page 17



Page 18 of 31 

respects the heritage value and distinctiveness of the site, offers facilities for 
the retention and development of current business and the development of 
new activities and markets for the future. 

 
10. The biggest asset of the site in the markets in which it has to earn its 
income is its architectural and social significance and the quality and 
uniqueness of the site.  

 
11. The Congress Theatre and Winter Garden must be conserved and brought 
up to standard to enable uses for theatre, music, dinners and events that 
meet the standards expected by modern audiences and customers, whilst 
celebrating and revealing their historic quality.  

 
12. We expect that the improved and more efficient theatres will generate 
both increased frequency of theatre, music and entertainment events, 
particularly in the Winter Garden, and in ticket sales, contributing to the 
financial improvement of the business. 

 
13. There is significant new conference and event business to be generated 
which will make a key contribution to the economy of the site and of the town, 
but these uses demand a particular and precise arrangement of spaces and 
facilities, and, in the modern era, full accessibility and break out spaces for a 
diversity of uses. 

 
14. We forecast that once renewed, the site will host in the order of 353 
events a year of varying sizes. While many will continue to be in the 
association and charity sector, financial yields will rise and new business can 
be expected in the higher value corporate sector. In total we expect 
conference income in the order of £1.7m per annum, of which some £531k 
will be hires income. 

 
15. Catering incomes will improve given the new provision of two very 
attractive public catering spaces and the potential for increased food and 
beverage sales to conference organizers. In total we anticipate catering 
turnover in the order of £1.44m and net receipts/savings after all costs of 
£265k per annum. 

 
16. Together with the safeguarding and improvement to facilities of the 
international tennis tournament, we are confident that the site will move to a 
much more viable basis of operation on completion of the works.  

 
17. From a current subsidy in the order of £1.17m per annum, we anticipate 
that, after new investments in service to conferences and in managing and 
marketing the site, the new scheme will see Devonshire Park achieve new 
incomes and savings of just over £1m per annum, of which we recommend 
that £267,500 is reinvested annually in improved marketing and in new 
artistic programmes to reach and develop audiences. 

 
Brackets indicate a cost/deficit £ 
Total Subsidy cost now (14/15 budget) (a)  (1,172,100) 
Total improvement consequent on redevelopment  +1,082,018  
Net cost to EBC after works  (90,083) 

Page 18



Page 19 of 31 

New investments in conference/programme support  (267,500) 
Profit after works and investments (b)  (357,583) 
Difference (a-b)  +814,518  
  

18. Overall, the annual improvement in the financial outturn of the site, over 
the current basis, will be in the order of £814,000 per annum. 

 
19. Overall, the proposed scheme developed in this Stage 2 process elegantly 
and effectively supports this substantial business improvement and its impact 
for the town. 

 
DCA 
February 2015 

Page 19



Page 20 of 31 

 

Appendix 2 – Multi Disciplinary Design Team. 
 
The full team of consultants that are assisting the Council to achieve RIBA Stage 
3 are as follows:- 
 
The Team contracted to the architects are:- 
 
� Levitt Bernstein (Lead) 
� Edge Structures (Structural Engineers) 
� Levitt Bernstein (Landscape architects) 
� Trio Plus Ltd (Tennis Specialists) 
� Max Fordham (Mechanical Engineering) 
� Project Centre Ltd (Transport Specialists) 
� All Clear (Accessibility Specialists) 
� Exova (Fire Specialists) 

 
The support Team contracted to Eastbourne Borough Council are:- 
 
� Focus (Project Managers) 
� Denton’s (Lawyers) 
� Huntley Cartwright (Quantity Surveyors) 
� David Clarke Assoc. (Business Planning) 
� David Clarke Assoc. (Business Case) 
� Neil Woodyer (Theatre Consultant) 
� Sam Wise (Acoustics) 
� Kendrick’s Hobbs (Catering) 
� Venueadvisor (Conference) 
� Quince Retail (Retail) 
� SLS Coastway (Surveys) 
� Purcell’s (Conservation Management Plan) 
� Focus (Funding Strategy) 

Page 20



Page 21 of 31 

 
Appendix 3 - The Remit and Membership of the Project Board and 
Partnership Group 
 
 
Devonshire Park Project Board; Terms of Reference 
 
Background 
Devonshire Park is owned by Eastbourne Borough Council who has an ambition 
to see it become a cultural destination. A complex and large work programme is 
needed to achieve this objective. The Project Board is not a decision making 
Board and was set up with authority from Cabinet. 
 
Function of the Project Board 
The function of the Project Board is to oversee the strategic direction of the 
project, advising on realising the benefits, and monitoring risks, quality and 
timeliness.  
 
Role of the Project Board 
The role of the Project Board is to: 

• Be a Champion for and understand the strategic implications and 
outcomes of the project. 

• Project monitoring and scope checking. 
• Ensure the project aligns with the requirements of the stakeholders. 
• Consider ideas and advise on any issue that may have implications for the 

project. 
• Reconcile differences in opinion and recommending a way forward. 
• Advise on any corporate issues associated with the project. 
• Challenge and advise the project team. 
• Endorse and monitor the Project Implementation Document. 
• Monitor communications plans and dissemination of information. 
• Resolve any issues between time, cost and quality. 
• Monitoring risks and due diligence and review Governance. 

 
Membership 
The Project Board shall be comprised of the following positions (also showing 
name of current position holder): 
 

Leader of the Council (Chair) Councillor David Tutt 

Leader of the Opposition Councillor David Elkin 

Portfolio Holder for Tourism & Leisure 
Services 

Councillor Carolyn Heaps 

Shadow Portfolio Holder for Tourism & Leisure 
Services 

Councillor Philip Ede 

Chief Executive Robert Cottrill 

Senior Head of Regeneration, Planning and 
Assets 

Jefferson Collard/Nazeya 
Hussain 

Senior Head of Tourism and Enterprise Philip Evans 

Lawyer to the Council and Monitoring Officer Victoria Simpson/Catherine 
Knight 

Page 21



Page 22 of 31 

Chief Finance Officer Alan Osborne 

Project Programme Manager Graham Cook 

Project Manager,  Eleanor Clarke Focus 
Consultants 

 
Chair 
If the designated Chair is not available, then the Portfolio holder for Tourism and 
Enterprise (referred to as the Acting Chair) will be responsible for conducting 
that meeting. The Acting Chair is responsible for informing the Chair as to the 
salient points/decisions raised or agreed to at that meeting. 
 
Agenda Items 
The Project Board agenda, with attached meeting papers will be distributed at 
least two (2) working days prior to the next scheduled meeting. 
 
The Chair does not have the right to refuse to list an item on the formal agenda, 
and members may raise an item under ‘Other Business' if necessary and as time 
permits. 
 
Minutes & Meeting Papers 
The minutes of each Project Board meeting will be recorded and distributed by 
the PA to the Senior Head of Regeneration, Planning and Assets. 
 
Full copies of the minutes, including attachments, shall be provided to all Project 
Board members no later than 10 working days following each meeting. 
 
Frequency of Meetings 
The Project Board shall usually meet on a bi-monthly basis or as business 
dictates. 
 
Quorum Requirements 
A minimum of three (3) Project Board members is required for the meeting to be 
recognised as an authorised meeting for the recommendations to be valid. 
 
The quorum must contain at least one Member from the Leader Group and 
opposition and one Officer. 
 

Page 22



Page 23 of 31 

 
Devonshire Park Partnership Group; Terms of Reference 
 
Background 
Devonshire Park is a major project in the town. Its important the local 
community is involved in its development. The Partnership Group was formed to 
provide a consultative and information sharing forum with local businesses and 
other interested stakeholders.  
 
Role of the Partnership Group 

1. Authority to be the voice of their organisation 
2. Challenge the project to maximise its success 
3. Understand the wider implications of the project 
4. Sense check for wider consultation 
5. Promote the project positively 

 
Membership 
This shows the title of the position and the current holder of the position on the 
Group:- 
 
Senior Head of Tourism & Enterprise 
(Chair) 

Philip Evans 

Senior Head of Regeneration, Planning & 
Assets 

Jefferson Collard/Nazeya Hussain 

Corporate Projects Support Officer Paul Quanstrom 
Corporate Property Manager Paul Friend 
General Manager - Eastbourne Theatres Gavin Davis 
Artistic Director – Theatres Chris Jordan 
Tourism Development Manager Annie Wills 
Events Development Manager Mike Marchant 
Senior Planning Officer Lisa Rawlinson 
Conservation Officer Sarah Leete-Groves 
Executive Director – Towner Emma Morris 
Theatres Trust Mark Price, Planning & Heritage Advisor 

Mhora Samuels 
Rebecca Morland, Theatres Adviser 

Lawn Tennis Association Gavin Fletcher  
Mark Fisher  

ESCC Sally Staples, Cultural Strategy Manager 
Arts Council Jayne Tyler 
Chamber of Commerce  Derek Godfrey 

Mike Ogilvie  
Conference Bureau Jonathan Webley 
Eastbourne Hospitality Association Jerome Farrow 
East Sussex Disability Association Nick Tapp 
English Heritage Samantha Johnson 
The Twentieth Century Society Henrietta Billings 
Victorian Society Sarah L Caradec 
Project Managers Focus Consultants Steven Fletcher 

Eleanor Clarke 
Eastbourne Society Richard Crook 

Page 23



Page 24 of 31 

 
Chair 
If the designated Chair is not available, the Senior Head of Regeneration, 
Planning & Assets will be responsible for conducting that meeting. 
 
Agenda Items 
The agenda, with attached meeting papers will be distributed at least five 
working days prior to the next scheduled meeting. 
 
The Chair does not have the right to refuse to list an item on the formal agenda, 
and members may raise an item under ‘Other Business' if necessary and as time 
permits. 
 
Minutes & Meeting Papers 
The minutes of each meeting will be recorded and distributed by the PA to the 
Senior Head of Tourism & Enterprise or the Deputy Chair. 
 
Full copies of the minutes, including attachments, shall be provided no later than 
15 working days following each meeting. 
 
Frequency of Meetings 
The Group shall usually meet on a bi-monthly basis or as business dictates. 
 
 

Page 24



 

Page 25 of 31 

Appendix 4 – Concept Plans 
 

 

P
age 25



Page 26 of 31 

Site as Existing 
 

 
 

P
age 26



Page 27 of 31 

Site as Proposed (Layout as International Tennis Event) 
 

 

P
age 27



Page 28 of 31 

 
 

P
age 28



Page 29 of 31 

 
 
 
 

P
age 29



Page 30 of 31 

 

P
age 30



 

Page 31 of 31 

 
Appendix 5 – Proposed Governance Structure 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



BODY: CABINET 
 

DATE: 18 March 2015 
 

SUBJECT: Write off of Irrecoverable Debts 
 

REPORT OF: Deputy Chief Executive  

Ward(s): All 
 

Purpose: To seek Cabinet approval for the write off of debts in excess 
of £5,000 as required by Financial Procedure Rule 4.26. 
 

Contact: Pauline Adams, Financial Services Manager 
Tel 01323 415979 or internally on ext 5979 
 

Recommendations: Members are asked to approve the write off of irrecoverable 
debts as listed in the Appendix totalling £17,321.79. 
 

1.0 Introduction  
 

1.1 Financial Procedure Rule 4.26 provides delegated authority to the Chief 
Finance Officer for the write off of irrecoverable debts below £5,000. Beyond 
that limit, unless particular circumstances apply (like bankruptcy, liquidation 
etc) the approval of Cabinet is required.  
 

2.0 Write Offs 

2.1 Details of the write offs being recommended for write off by Cabinet are 
listed in the Appendix to the report with brief explanations of the 
circumstances. 
 

2.2 In all cases a number of methods of collection were attempted before the 
debts were recommended for write off.  
 

2.3 The write off does not mean that debt is not still due to the council and in 
cases where circumstances have changed the debt will be written back on 
and recovery pursued.  
 

3.0 Financial Implications 

3.1 The write offs do not have an immediate financial effect on the current 
year’s budget as the bad debt provision is greater than the write off total. 
However, the making of that provision did have a cost implication at the 
time the provision was made. The Council maintains provisions against the 
level of debts outstanding as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 33



2 

 Provision as 
% of total 
debt 

Funded by 

NNDR 32% 50% Central Government, 40% 
EBC, 9% East Sussex CC & 1% 
East Sussex Fire.  

 
 

4.0 Consultation 
 

4.1 Not Applicable 

5.0 Conclusion 

5.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval for the write off of irrecoverable debts in 
excess of £5,000 totalling £17,321.79 where all other methods of recovery 
have been unsuccessful and it is not deemed appropriate to pursue the debts 
further.  
 

 
 

Pauline Adams 
Financial Services Manager 
 
Background Papers: 
 
There were not background papers used in compiling this report 
 

 

Page 34



Agenda Item 10

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Devonshire Park project (KD).
	8 Write-off of irrecoverable debts.
	10 Write-off of irrecoverable debts.

